Corning Subbasin Advisory Board
Supplemental Meeting Packet
February 4, 2026

Item 3.a. December 3, 2025 draft meeting minutes

CSAB Supplemental Meeting Packet | February 4, 2026

Page



Corning Subbasin Advisory Board

Members ‘;n.&’;m

Matt Hansen -- Dave Lester -- Steve Gruenwald -- lan Turnbull (Alternate)

Corning Subbasin Advisory Board
December 3, 2025 | 1:30p.m.
Location | 794 Third Street, Corning, CA 96021
And Teleconference
Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order

Member Amaro called the Corning Subbasin Advisory Board (CSAB) meeting to
order at 1:35 p.m.

2. Roll Call
Tehama County Flood Control and Water | Corning Sub-basin Groundwater
Conservation District (TCFCWCD) Sustainability Agency (GSA) (CSGSA)
Matt Hansen X John Amaro
X  David Lester X  Brian Mori
X  Steve Gruenwald Jim Yoder
X lan Turnbull (Alternate) Grant Carmon (Alternate)

Other participants: Lisa Hunter (Glenn County), Justin Jenson (Tehama County), Lena
Sequeira (Tehama County), Adriana Langarica (Tehama County), Kaitlyn Murray (Glenn
County), Robin Imfeld, Fred Imfeld, Bill Davis, Will Anderson (LSCE), *Brandon Davison
(DWR), *Michael Ward, *Liam, *John, *Michael . * = Online Participant.

3. Meeting Minutes

a. *Approval of December 4, 2024 meeting minutes.

b. *Approval of August 6, 2025 meeting minutes.
Member Gruenwald moved to approve the December 4, 2024 and August 6,
2025 meeting minutes. The motion was seconded by Member Mori and
passed unanimously.

4. Public Comment
None
5. *Approve 2026 CSAB Meeting Schedule

Member Gruenwald asked about the meetings lining up with deadlines.
J. Jenson clarified and explained how the meetings align with those deadlines.

Member Gruenwald asked what would trigger a meeting.

CSAB Supplemental Meeting Packet | February 4, 2026 Page 2

. . K Tehama County Flood Control
John Amaro -- Brian Mori -- Jim Yoder -- Grant Carmon (Alternate) and Water Conservation District




J. Jenson stated that any member of the group could request a meeting.

A motion was made by Member Turnbull and seconded by Member Gruenwald to
approve the 2026 CSAB Meeting Schedule as presented. The motion passed
unanimously.

6. Receive update on Sustainable Groundwater Management (SGM)
Implementation Grant.

J. Jenson stated that Will Anderson with LSCE would be providing updates on the
topic.

W. Anderson reviewed grant administration and outlined next steps.

J. Jenson commented that reimbursement requests are submitted on a three-month
cycle, but it can take several months to receive funds. He explained that the Flood
District typically fronts these costs but has run out of funds to do so. J. Jenson
added that he is working with DWR to expedite reimbursements and noted the
challenges of fronting costs for large projects.

W. Anderson reviewed the breakdown of grant spending to date through the end of
October.

Member Mori asked where the remaining funds are allocated.

W. Anderson clarified and provided details on how the remaining funds are
designated.

Member Mori asked whether the grant allocations were expected to be fully
expended.

W. Anderson responded that, in his opinion, the team is on track to utilize the funds
as effectively as possible.

W. Anderson reviewed Task Three, which includes multi-completion wells. He
explained that initial sampling is required to establish accurate elevations, followed
by installation of continuous monitoring equipment. He also discussed
interconnected surface water monitoring wells and the next steps for those efforts.

W. Anderson reviewed Tasks Four and Five, noting that high-level diversion permits
have been submitted and are currently under review. He discussed associated
timelines and provided an update on the California Olive Ranch turnout, stating that
the permit application has been submitted for review.

W. Anderson reviewed upcoming next steps.

A resident asked about the California Olive Ranch project.

CSAB Supplemental Meeting Packet | February 4, 2026 Page 3



W. Anderson responded and clarified the resident’s questions.

Member Turnbull asked about domestic well monitoring and whether additional
participants could be added to the program.

W. Anderson responded that additional installations are planned and that staff are
seeking more volunteers.

Discussion followed regarding the domestic well monitoring program.

A member commented on the timeline for grant reimbursements.

J. Jenson provided an update on efforts to accelerate the reimbursement process.
Discussion followed regarding grant reimbursement timelines.

6. Well Mitigation Program

a. Status update from CSGSA on their development of a well mitigation
program for the Glenn County portion of the Corning Subbasin.

L. Hunter provided an update on the CSGSA’s development of a well
mitigation program for the Glenn County portion of the Corning Subbasin,
stating that they have opted to partner with the Colusa Subbasin to create a
regional domestic well mitigation program with two additional GSAs. She
explained that they are currently working on a one-year pilot program to allow
for adjustments as needed and are coordinating with North Valley Community
Foundation to implement the program.

L. Hunter noted that the program would include an application fee and a well
evaluation review process prior to a well being drilled or rehabilitated. She
explained that the three GSAs would work together as a committee to review
eligibility and criteria. She added that an agreement between the three GSAs
has been developed and that they are also working on an agreement with the
North Valley Community Foundation, along with a separate well owner
agreement.

Member Turnbull asked whether the program would have access to grant
funding.

L. Hunter responded that grant funding is ending and will not be available,
noting that responsibility would fall to the GSAs.

Member Mori asked whether there was a working draft of the well mitigation
plan.

L. Hunter responded that the GSA agreement could be shared.

CSAB Supplemental Meeting Packet | February 4, 2026 Page 4



Member Mori asked whether the CSAB would be able to review the
documents.

L. Hunter stated that the documents could be shared after they are made
public.

Member Mori commented that he would like to review the program framework
if available.

Member Gruenwald asked how coordination with Colusa Subbasin would
affect collaboration with Tehama County.

L. Hunter responded that she has discussed this with J. Jenson and that it
was determined well mitigation could be split at the county line based on how
permits are issued. She emphasized the importance of continued
coordination and shared her opinion that this structure would work for the
program.

b. Status update from Tehama County GSA on their development of a well
mitigation program for the Tehama County portion of the Corning
Subbasin.

J. Jenson provided an update on Tehama County’s well mitigation program,
stating that the draft program has gone through both the Ad Hoc and Working
Groups. He noted that the draft has been presented to the Groundwater
Commission and the Board, and that details will be reviewed at this month’s
Groundwater Commission and Board meetings. He reviewed the timeline for
the program to go live and highlighted the major rules and criteria.

Member Gruenwald asked about a well over forty years old going dry and the
dollar amount cap associated with replacement.

J. Jenson responded that this reflects the current staff recommendation.
Discussion followed regarding the 40-year age cap on well replacement.

Member Mori asked how the requirement aligns with the Colusa and Glenn
County programs.

L. Hunter responded that the programs are not significantly different and
noted that well condition is evaluated as part of the review process.

Discussion followed regarding the Glenn County portion of the program.

J. Jenson commented that Tehama County will also be working with North
Valley Community Foundation.

CSAB Supplemental Meeting Packet | February 4, 2026 Page 5



Member Turnbull asked about eligibility for North Valley’s services when a
well is over 40 years old.

Additional discussion followed regarding the age cap on well replacement.
A resident shared their opinion on the age restriction.
A resident asked about the origin of the age-based limitation.

J. Jenson explained that the age threshold resulted from a review of well
mitigation programs statewide and discussions with Environmental Health. He
noted that the state defines a functional well as 40 years old and emphasized
that the criteria will be subject to a formal vote and public input, which could
impact the final outcome.

Member Turnbull recommended attending upcoming Groundwater
Commission and Flood meetings.

J. Jenson also recommended submitting comments via email so they could
be forwarded to the Board.

Discussion followed regarding existing dry wells, continued use of North
Valley Community Foundation services, and the age cap for dry well
replacement.

c. *Discussion to identify potential opportunities for coordination of the
programs. As appropriate, provide recommendations to GSAs.

Member Mori suggested that much of the coordination work is already being
carried out and explained what he felt was being done to achieve
coordination.

Member Lester asked whether there are programs in the state that do not
include an age cap on wells.

J. Jenson responded that some programs do not have an age cap, though
many do include such a requirement.

A resident asked about a program that assisted with well replacements and
whether it included an age cap.

J. Jenson responded that he did not believe that program had an age cap, but
noted he was not certain and that it is funded through a different mechanism.

Discussion followed regarding the age cap requirement for well replacement.

L. Hunter commented that on the Corning Sub-basin GSA side, for planning
purposes, through a well analysis, they expect eight well will need to be
replaced.

CSAB Supplemental Meeting Packet | February 4, 2026 Page 6



Member Turnbull asked how that figure was determined.
L. Hunter provided clarification.
Additional discussion followed regarding well replacements.

A resident commented on the Tehama County well mitigation program and
asked whether it includes agricultural wells in addition to domestic wells.

J. Jenson confirmed that agricultural wells are included.

The resident continued by sharing concerns regarding agricultural well
replacement, noting that they did not feel it was appropriate to replace
agricultural wells if domestic wells over forty years old were not eligible.

J. Jenson explained the rationale for not differentiating between agricultural
and domestic wells.

8. Demand Management Program

a. Status update from CSGSA on their development of a demand
management program for the Glenn County portion of the Corning
Subbasin.

L. Hunter provided an update, stating that a Coordinating Members
Committee is reviewing the framework document provided by the LSCE
Team. She noted that the group is proceeding at a slower pace and is waiting
to see the outcome of Tehama County’s plan.

b. Status update from Tehama County GSA on their development of a
demand management program for the Tehama County portion of the
Corning Subbasin.

J. Jenson provided an update on the Tehama County program, noting that it
is on the same timeline as the well mitigation program. He explained that the
plan is structured around three components and reviewed each in detail.

The first component includes incentivized actions, with partnerships in place
with the RCD to pilot grant-funded projects, along with additional state funding
opportunities. The second component is a tiered approach, where charges
increase as pumping moves farther from the Measurable Objective (MO),
creating incentives to reduce water use while localizing impacts. The third
component consists of sustainable yield pumping restrictions.

J. Jenson noted that there is an anticipated six-month gap between plan
adoption and implementation. He added that the working group holds a range
of perspectives and that the draft plan will be presented to the Groundwater
Commission and the Board, which could result in changes to the proposed
program.

CSAB Supplemental Meeting Packet | February 4, 2026 Page 7



Member Turnbull asked whether outside legal counsel had reviewed the plan.
J. Jenson responded that counsel has reviewed the plan and provided
feedback indicating that it is legally defensible. He also summarized key
recommendations from outside counsel.

Discussion followed regarding the technical memorandum and feedback
received from consultants.

J. Jenson discussed the timeline for the discussed measures to take effect in
2031.

Member Amaro asked how over-pumping would be monitored.

J. Jenson responded that it would be evaluated based on crop type and
acreage, and he explained the formula used.

Discussion followed regarding the various possible scenarios.

Member Gruenwald shared personal experience related to almond irrigation
and water use.

J. Jenson clarified usage assumptions and the data sources used to
determine calculations.

Discussion followed regarding the proposed calculation methodology.

c. *Discussion to identify potential opportunities for coordination of the
programs. As appropriate, provide recommendations to GSAs.

None at this time.

9. *Recommendation to GSAs on funding to support well mitigation and demand
management programs in each GSA.

Member Amaro opened the floor for discussion on the item.

Member Mori commented that a one-third/two-thirds split makes sense based on
shared land within the basin, but noted that it would also depend on the amount of
work needed in a given area.

J. Jenson stated that the calculations he has reviewed still indicate approximately a
two-thirds share for Tehama County and one-third for Glenn County, and that this
aligns well overall.

Member Mori continued to share his perspective on the proposed split.

Member Amaro agreed that the split appears fair at this time.

CSAB Supplemental Meeting Packet | February 4, 2026 Page 8



10.

11.

L. Hunter asked whether the funds were intended for planning purposes to develop
the program, rather than for well construction.

J. Justin responded that the funding would support planning efforts, such as
developing the data needed to create polygons.

Discussion followed regarding the funding split.

Member Gruenwald moved to recommend to the GSAs that the funding to support
well mitigation and demand management programs in each GSA be split on a two-
thirds Tehama GSA, one-third CSGSA basis. The motion was seconded by Member
Mori and passed unanimously.

Receive update on GSA modeling approach.

W. Anderson with LSCE provided a brief update on modeling, noting that the domain
for the Tehama model was expanded to cover the entire Corning Subbasin. He
discussed improvements to SVSim and C2VSim and highlighted the next steps for
modeling.

Member Turnbull asked whether there was an update on GDE mapping.

W. Anderson responded that Evan Davis, also with LSCE, would provide that update
at a later time.

Member Turnbull commented on invasive species, expressing curiosity about how
they are being managed and sharing his opinions regarding their presence.

J. Jenson noted that this is a hot-topic item and explained that both models are
currently being run. He added that, in the future, the models can be compared to
determine which approach is preferred.

Discussion followed regarding comparing the models and evaluating their outcomes.

Receive update on Water Year 2025 Annual Report.

W. Anderson provided an update on the status of the annual report, stating that they
are in the data collection phase and that the timeline would be similar to previous
years.

Member Gruenwald asked about the last annual report in which DWR commented
on a lack of monitoring.

J. Jenson provided clarification regarding Member Gruenwald’s question.

Discussion followed regarding the annual report data.

CSAB Supplemental Meeting Packet | February 4, 2026 Page 9



12.

13.

14.

Member Gruenwald asked about other comments from the fall measurements.

J. Jenson clarified that all wells for which Tehama County is responsible have
continuous monitoring, allowing data to be pulled at any time.

Discussion followed regarding the monitoring parameters and costs.

Receive update on Corning Subbasin 2027 Periodic Evaluation.

W. Anderson provided an update, noting that the periodic evaluation is mostly
drafted and currently under internal review. He added that most of the remaining
work is in the Projects and Management Actions (PMA) section, and once
completed, the report will be handed over to the GSAs for review.

Member Mori asked whether a draft would be available for the February meeting.
J. Jenson responded that this is the intention.

L. Hunter asked, given that the report is due in 2027, whether additional data would
be collected.

W. Anderson provided clarification.

Receive update on Inter-basin Coordination.

J. Jenson commented that the inter-basin coordination groups have been meeting.

L. Hunter noted that a presentation from the Butte Advisory Board is included in
today’s meeting packet, highlighting its importance and relevance to multiple groups.
She also mentioned an upcoming webinar and noted that the informational flyer was
included in the meeting packet.

J. Jenson agreed that it is valuable to hear about these topics and discuss them in
person.

Groundwater Sustainability Agency Reports

J. Jenson discussed the public outreach meeting in Red Bluff scheduled for tonight
and reviewed the materials to be presented, noting that the same meeting would be
held tomorrow in Corning.

L. Hunter updated the group that the CSGSA will hold a similar meeting focused on
the Corning Subbasin in early 2026, including a request to reactivate the stream
gage in Stony Creek. She also mentioned a grant submittal that, if awarded, would
revisit subsidence benchmarks in Glenn and Colusa Counties to enable
comparisons for subsidence. L. Hunter noted that the work is related to

CSAB Supplemental Meeting Packet | February 4, 2026 Page 10



transportation networks, as funding will come through a transportation grant, and
that the data can also be used for groundwater management activities.

Discussion followed regarding the transportation grant data.

15. Corning Subbasin Advisory Board Member Reports and Comments

None.

16. Next Meeting
2/4/26

17. Adjourn
3:30pm

CSAB Supplemental Meeting Packet | February 4, 2026 Page 11





